

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Ninety-fifth Legislature

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

Published by the Director of Legislative Research in accordance with subsection VI of section 26 of chapter 9 of the Revised Statutes of 1944.

KENNEBEC JOURNAL
AUGUSTA, MAINE
1951

PUBLIC LAWS

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

As Passed by the Ninety-fifth Legislature

1951

referred to in section 20 shall be maintained by the commission and the expense thereof charged to such funds under the jurisdiction of the commission as are available for the purpose of maintaining state highways.'

Effective August 20, 1951

Chapter 393

AN ACT to Revise Educational Subsidy and Tuition Regulations.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 37, § 96, amended. The last sentence of section 96 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'When a town has made a contract as provided for in this section, or as provided in the act of incorporation of any such academy and amendments thereto prior to May 1, 1907, the tuition liability of said town shall be the same as if a free high school were maintained in accordance with section 89, and the expenditure of any town for schooling of pupils as provided in this section shall be subject to the same conditions and shall entitle such town to the same state aid as if it had made such expenditure for a free high school of sections 98 and 99 for the purposes of state subsidy to the municipality or community school district under the provisions of section 201.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 37, § 98, amended. The 1st sentence of the 2nd paragraph of section 98 of chapter 37 of the revised statutes, as repealed and replaced by section 1 of chapter 443 of the public laws of 1949, is hereby amended to read as follows:

'In the case of any youth attending school under conditions as provided for in the preceding paragraph, in schools in which the enrollment of tuition students is 10% or more of the total enrollment or attending any community district high school, the annual tuition shall not exceed ~~100%~~ 115% of the average ~~of costs~~ cost per pupil in all secondary schools of the state for the preceding year; except that, in a secondary school in which the enrollment of tuition pupils is less than 10% of the total enrollment or in which at least 3 courses of study, 2 of which are industrial or occupational, are not offered, the tuition shall not exceed ~~90%~~ of the average ~~of costs~~ cost per pupil in all secondary schools of the state for the preceding year.'

Sec. 3. R. S., c. 37, § 99, amended. The 1st paragraph of section 99 of chapter 37 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby further amended to read as follows:

'When any town shall have been required to pay and has paid tuition for pupils attending secondary schools, as provided by section 98, the superintendent of schools of such town shall make a return under oath to the commissioner before the 1st day of September, annually, for the preceding school year, stating the name of each pupil for whom tuition has been paid, the amount paid by the town for each and the name and location of the school which each has attended. ~~Upon approval of said return, the commissioner shall apportion to such town a sum equal to 2/3 the amount thus paid by such town provided the apportionment to any one town for any one year does not exceed \$1,000. Provided further, that tuition~~ Tuition charges for each pupil may be paid by towns to an amount not exceeding the receiving school's average cost per pupil for the year preceding that for which the tuition is paid; except that payments in excess of said average cost may be made by vote of the sending town, but such payment by a town for any pupil for any one year shall be subject to the ~~provisions~~ limitations of section 98. Provided further, that the average cost per pupil shall be determined as follows: (1) Add the amounts paid for certified or licensed teachers' ~~wages~~ salaries, fuel, janitor service, textbooks, supplies, ~~ordinary minor repairs~~ utility services, premiums paid on insurance, and ~~3%~~ 6% of the insured value of the school buildings and equipment for depreciation; (2) ~~from this amount subtract state and/or federal subsidy paid on teaching positions, courses, or per capita aid on account of this school;~~ (2) divide the difference total by the average daily attendance membership of all regularly enrolled students. Provided further, that any town not maintaining a high school may pay tuition for any student who with parents or guardian resides in said town and who attends an approved school of secondary grade in a town adjacent to the state of Maine in another state, when distance and transportation facilities make attendance in a Maine high school or academy inexpedient; or who attends an approved school of secondary grade in another state when said school specializes in the correction of physical defects and when by reason of a physical disability the individual requires a specialized type of training available in said school but not obtainable in any approved secondary school in the state of Maine.

Sec. 4. R. S., c. 37, § 165, repealed and replaced. Section 165 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

'Sec. 165. State aid for maintaining agriculture, industrial arts and home economics. Whenever the superintendent of schools of any municipality

or community school or the trustees of any incorporated academy shall certify to the commissioner on forms prescribed by him that instruction has been provided pupils of elementary schools, high schools, or academies for the year preceding, said instruction having been approved as to course content, equipment and teacher qualifications, in general agriculture, industrial arts, or general home economics, the commissioner is authorized to make apportionments of state aid as follows: (a) for municipal programs, the reimbursement payable in accord with section 201; (b) for academy programs, \$700 per teaching position, as defined in section 197.'

Sec. 5. R. S., c. 37, § 197, amended. Section 197 of the revised statutes, as amended, is hereby further amended by adding at the end thereof the following new paragraph:

'The term "membership" shall mean active participation in the program of a school from the date of enrollment to the time the student (a) withdraws or (b) is absent from the school for 10 consecutive days for reasons other than illness.'

Sec. 6. Effective date. The provisions of this act shall become effective July 1, 1952.

Effective July 1, 1952

Chapter 394

AN ACT Relating to the Sale of Lobster Meat.

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:

R. S., c. 34, § 120, amended. The 1st 6 paragraphs of section 120 of chapter 34 of the revised statutes, as revised, are hereby repealed and the following paragraphs enacted in place thereof:

'A permit to remove lobster meat from the shell for sale may be granted to any person licensed as a dealer under the provisions of sections 111, 113 or 114 upon written application to the commissioner and the payment of a fee of \$10.

No person shall remove lobster meat from the shell for sale without a permit therefor, nor shall any person possess, sell, offer or expose for sale, give away, ship or transport any lobster meat after the same has been removed from the shell, except meat which has been removed by the holder of a permit as described above and except as hereinafter provided.